
  

 

 

City and County of Swansea 
 
Notice of Meeting 
 
You are invited to attend a Meeting of the 

 

Armed Forces Community Covenant Signatories 
Panel 

 

At: 
 

Remotely via Microsoft Teams 
 

On: 
 

Monday, 15 March 2021 

Time: 
 

2.00 pm 

Chair: Councillor Wendy Lewis 
 
Watch Online: http://bit.ly/380ASmF 

 
 

Agenda 
Page No. 

1   Apologies for Absence.  
 
2   Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interests from Members.  

 www.swansea.gov.uk/DisclosuresofInterests 
 

 

3   Minutes. 1 - 4 
 To approve & sign the Minutes of the previous meeting(s) as a correct 

record. 
 

 
4   Supporting Pupils from Service Families. (Yasmin Todd) 5 - 8 
 
5   Armed Forces Covenant Regional Project.  
 
6   Update from MOD.  
 
7   Swansea Bay University Health Board, Armed Forces Forum.  
 
8   Update from Panel Members.  
 
 

Next Meeting: Monday, 12 July 2021 at 2.00 pm 
 

 
Huw Evans 
Head of Democratic Services  
Monday 8 March 2021 

Contact: Gareth Borsden - 01792 636923 
 

http://bit.ly/380ASmF
http://www.swansea.gov.uk/DisclosuresofInterests


 

 

Armed Forces Community Covenant Signatories Panel 

Signatory Contact Telephone Email/ Address 

City & County of 
Swansea 

Councillor Wendy Lewis, AFCC 
Champion 

07866271605   Cllr.Wendy.Lewis@swansea.gov.uk 

HM Lord Lieutenant of 
West Glamorgan 

Louise Fleet 
Steve Fry (DL)   

Army Captain Chris Evans MBE 01792 401528 

157 (Welsh) Regt RLC,233 (West Glamorgan) Transport Squadron 
The Royal Logistic Corps (Volunteers) Army Reserve Centre, The 
Grange 
Swansea SA3 5AD Chris.evans582@mod.gov.uk 

RAF 
Air Commodore Adrian Williams 
OBE ADC MA BA FCILT RAF  
Sqn Ldr S L Cairns MA RAFR 

 
c/o 614 Sqn, Ty Llewellyn, Morgan Street 
Cardiff, CF10 4FG 

Navy 
CPO Rob Evans 

Lt Cdr Tim Williams 
 

Rob.Evans838@mod.gov.uk 
Timothy.Williams728@mod.gov.uk 
 

SSAFA 
David Singletary 
Stephen Boswell 

01792 653432 
07940 576977 

SSAFA Office, Alamein Road, Landore,SA1 2HP 
swwales.branch@ssafa.org.uk 
Stephen.boswell@ssafa.org.uk 

Probation, Wales CRC 
(Community 

Rehabilitation Company). 

Rachel Edwards 
 

 

 
07896 259795 /  01792 

645505 / 479390 
 

Wales Probation Trust West Glamorgan House 
12 Orchard Street Swansea SA1 5AD 
Rachel.edwards@workinglinkssecure.co.uk  
www.workinglinks.co.uk 

Prison Service 
Rob Denman 
John Tossell  

 
 HMP Swansea, 200 Oystermouth Road, Swansea,SA1 3SR 

South Wales Police 
Tony McAlinden 
Alison Fischer 

 
07790944116 

Chief Inspector Operations & Policy Manager  
Offender Management & Substance Misuse 

Swansea Bay Regional 
Equality Council 

(SBREC) 

Taha Idris 
Chief Executive 

 
Swansea Bay Regional Equality Council 
Mansel House, 101 Mansel Street 
Swansea, SA1 5UE  

Welsh Air Ambulance 
Mark Stevens 

Fundraising Manager 
 

Wales Air Ambulance, Ty Elusen,Bay Studios Business Park,Fabian 
Way,Swansea SA1 8QJ  

Ospreys Rugby 
Paul Whapham 

Tom Sloan 
01792 616503 

Liberty Stadium, Landore, Swansea SA1 2FA 
paul.whapham@ospreysrugby.com 
tom.sloane@ospreysrugby.com 

Change Step Kev Bogdan 
0728 3414 725 

 
 

46 Talbot Rd, Port Talbot, SA13 1HU. 
kevinbogdan@wcada.org  

Job Centre Plus 
Claire Jones 

Employment & Partnership 
Manager 

 
claire.jones1@dwp.gov.uk  
 

Finola Pickwell Hafal  
finola.pickwell@hafal.org 
 

Mid and West Wales Fire 
and Rescue Service 

Steve Davies 
Andy Mills  

sp.davies@mawwfire.gov.uk 
a.mills@mawwfire.gov.uk 

Swansea Council for 
Voluntary Service 

(SCVS) 

Alyx Baharie 
Lauren Howlett 

01792 544005 
Voluntary Action Centre,7 Walter Road, 
Swansea SA1 5NF alyx_baharie@scvs.org.uk 
Lauren_Howlett@scvs.org.uk 

Royal British Legion – 
Swansea Branch 

Sqd Ldr Phil. C. Flower MBE DL 
RAFVR(T) 

Anna Looker 
John Williams 

Seamus Brennan 

07814177193 

City of Swansea Branch Royal British Legion 
pflower@britishlegion.org.uk 
jwilliams1@britishlegion.org.uk 
alooker@britishlegion.org.uk 
SBrennan@britishlegion.org.uk 

University of Wales 
Trinity St David 

Medwin Hughes 
 

Tania Davies 

01792 481216 
 

medwin.hughes@sm.uwtsd.ac.uk 
tania.davies@uwtsd.ac.uk 

Gower College Swansea 
Mark Jones 

Principal   
Gower College Swansea, Tycoch Road, Swansea SA2 9EB  

Swansea University 
Peter Neville 

 
01792 295391  

English Language Training Services, Margam Building, Swansea 
University, Swansea  
SA2 8PP p.l.neville@swansea.ac.uk 

Remploy Swansea 
Eleonora Evans 
Stephanie Pass 

 
Remploy Employment Services, Alexandra House,1 Alexandra Road, 
Swansea, SA1 5ED.  

Citizens Advice Swansea 
Neath Port Talbot 

Pat Dunmore 01792 739914 
City Gates, Wind Street, Swansea SA1 1EE 
pat.dunmore@citizensadvicesnpt.org.uk 
 

mailto:Cllr.Wendy.Lewis@swansea.gov.uk
mailto:Chris.evans582@mod.gov.uk
mailto:Rob.Evans838@mod.gov.uk
mailto:Timothy.Williams728@mod.gov.uk
mailto:swwales.branch@ssafa.org.uk
mailto:Stephen.boswell@ssafa.org.uk
mailto:Rachel.edwards@workinglinkssecure.co.uk
http://www.workinglinks.co.uk/
mailto:paul.whapham@ospreysrugby.com
mailto:tom.sloane@ospreysrugby.com
mailto:kevinbogdan@wcada.org
mailto:CLAIRE.JONES1@DWP.GOV.UK
mailto:finola.pickwell@hafal.org
mailto:sp.davies@mawwfire.gov.uk
mailto:a.mills@mawwfire.gov.uk
mailto:alyx_baharie@scvs.org.uk
mailto:Lauren_Howlett@scvs.org.uk
mailto:pflower@britishlegion.org.uk
mailto:jwilliams1@britishlegion.org.uk
mailto:alooker@britishlegion.org.uk
mailto:SBrennan@britishlegion.org.uk
tel:01792%20481216
mailto:medwin.hughes@sm.uwtsd.ac.uk
tel:01792%20295154
mailto:p.l.neville@swansea.ac.uk
mailto:pat.dunmore@citizensadvicesnpt.org.uk


  

Age Cymru West 
Glamorgan 

Chief Executive Officer 01792 648866 

Unit 10 Cwmdu Industrial Estate Carmarthen Road, Swansea SA5 
8JF 
enquiries@agecymruwestglamorgan.org.uk 
 

Veterans NHS Wales Victoria Williams  Victoria.Williams4@wales.nhs.uk  

Veterans Club 
Sandy Shaw 

Kathryn Morgans 

07581 293292 sandy@veterans-club.co.uk 
secretary@veterans-club.co.uk 
 

Armed Forces Bikers Tony Hayward 
 ma.hayward2@btopenworld.com  

 

British Training Board  Adrian Rabey  Adrian@britishtrainingboard.org.uk  

Aartic Training 
 

Antony Rabey  Antony@aarticts.co.uk  

Merchant Navy 
Association 

Louise Snelgrove 
Capt Roy Griffiths 

  

Royal British Legion Peter Evans  PEvans@britishlegion.org.uk  

Cruse Sue Richards-Hoskin  
morgannwg@cruse.org.uk 
 

Help for Heroes Julian North  julian.north@helpforheroes.org.uk  

Blesma  
 

Thomas Hall 
Jason Suller 

07780 165085 
bsowest@blesma.org 
 

EFT Consult Adrian Matthews   adrianmatthews@eftconsult.co.uk 

Care after Combat 
 

Rob Nicholls   

 
The Poppy Factory 

 
Natalie McCombe  020 8940 3305 NatalieM@poppyfactory.org 

SToMP (Supporting the 
Transition of Military 

Personnel) 

Andy Jones 
Paul Jones 

 
07817 941612 

andy.jones1@justice.gov.uk 
wales.stomp@justice.gov.uk 
Paul.Jones7@justice.gov.uk 

Age Cymru 
Heather Ferguson 

Danielle Welsh 
 

heather.ferguson@agecymru.org.uk 
Danielle.Welsh@agecymru.org.uk 

Action on Hearing Loss Charis Moon  Charis.moon@hearingloss.org.uk 

Woody’s Lodge   
David@woodyslodge.org, steve@woodyslodge.org  
sian@woodyslodge.org  

Swansea Armed Forces 
Breakfast Club 

Bernice Morgan  
rt.bk.morgan@ntlworld.com 
 

Natural Resources 
Wales 

Debbie Hamer  Debbie.Hamer@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk  

Swansea Bay University 
Health Board 

Chris Morrell  
Jackie Davies  
Fiona Smith 

 
christine.morrell@wales.nhs.uk 
jackie.davies2@wales.nhs.uk 
Fiona.smith6@wales.nhs.uk 

Third Sector & Trust 
Fund Commissioning Co-

ordinator 

Spencer Martin 
 

01792 636734 Spencer.martin@swansea.gov.uk  

Regional Armed Forces 
Covenant Liaison Officer 

Grace Halfpenny 01639 763418 
g.c.halfpenny@npt.gov.uk 
 

Strategic Manager -
Tourism, Marketing & 

Events 
Fran Jenkins 01792 635201 

 
Frances.Jenkins@swansea.gov.uk 
 

Special Events 
 

David Price Deer 01792 635455 special.events@swansea.gov.uk  

Ageing Well Participation 
Officer 

 
Dominic Nutt 01792 522946 

Dominic.nutt@swansea.gov.uk 
 

Common Access Point 
for Adults  - Social Care 

Rachel Davies 
 

01792 636617 rachel.davies4@swansea.gov.uk  

 

mailto:enquiries@agecymruwestglamorgan.org.uk
mailto:Victoria.Williams4@wales.nhs.uk
mailto:sandy@veterans-club.co.uk
mailto:secretary@veterans-club.co.uk
mailto:ma.hayward2@btopenworld.com
mailto:Adrian@britishtrainingboard.org.uk
mailto:Antony@aarticts.co.uk
mailto:PEvans@britishlegion.org.uk
mailto:morgannwg@cruse.org.uk
mailto:julian.north@helpforheroes.org.uk
mailto:bsowest@blesma.org
mailto:chrisjenkins@eftconsult.co.uk
mailto:andy.jones1@justice.gov.uk
mailto:wales.stomp@justice.gov.uk
mailto:heather.ferguson@agecymru.org.uk
mailto:David@woodyslodge.org
mailto:steve@woodyslodge.org
mailto:sian@woodyslodge.org
mailto:rt.bk.morgan@ntlworld.com
mailto:Debbie.Hamer@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk
mailto:christine.morrell@wales.nhs.uk
mailto:jackie.davies2@wales.nhs.uk
mailto:Fiona.smith6@wales.nhs.uk
mailto:Spencer.martin@swansea.gov.uk
mailto:g.c.halfpenny@npt.gov.uk
mailto:Frances.Jenkins@swansea.gov.uk
mailto:special.events@swansea.gov.uk
mailto:Dominic.nutt@swansea.gov.uk
mailto:rachel.davies4@swansea.gov.uk


 
 

 

City and County of Swansea 
 

Minutes of the Armed Forces Community Covenant 
Signatories Panel 

 
Remotely via Microsoft Teams  

Monday, 18 January 2021 at 2.00 pm 

 
Present: W G Lewis (Chair) Presided 

 
Representing Organisations  
Seamus Brennan Royal British Legion 
Rob Denman Prison Service 
Pat Dunmore Citizens Advice Bureau 
CPO Rob Evans HMS Cambria 
Sqd Ldr Phil. C. Flower Royal British Legion Swansea Branch 
Grace Halfpenny Regional Armed Forces Covenant Liaison Officer 
Thomas Hall Blesma 
Paul Jones STOMP 
Christine Morrell Swansea Bay University Health Board 
Julian North Help for Heroes 
Adrian Rabey British Training Board 
Tom Sloan Ospreys Rugby 
Neil Tomlin Royal Air Force Benevolent Fund 
John Williams Royal British Legion 
Victoria Williams Veterans NHS Wales 

 
Officer(s)  
Gareth Borsden 
Dan Garnell 

Democratic Services Officer 
Local Area Co-ordinator 

David Price Deer Special Events Manager 
Spencer Martin Third Sector & Trust Fund Commissioning Co-ordinator 
 
Apologies for Absence 
Alyx Baharie, Jackie Davies, Capt. Chris Evans, Louise Fleet, Natalie McCombe, 
Peter Neville, Finola Pickwell, Cllr Alyson Pugh and Sian Woodland 
 

 
91 Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interests. 

 
None. 
 

92 Minutes. 
 
Resolved that the Minutes of the Panel held on 16 November 2020 be approved as 
a correct record. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes of the Armed Forces Community Covenant Signatories Panel (18.01.2021) 
Cont’d 

 

93 Armed Forces Covenant Regional Project. 
 
Grace Halfpenny reported that the new member of staff, Yasmin Todd had recently 
recently taken up her role as the ‘Supporting Service Children in Schools’ officer 
under the  Welsh Local Government Association’s schools project and would attend 
the next meeting to discuss her role. 
 
She would be meeting with the education department from Swansea Council shortly 
to discuss matters and issues that she may be able to assist with. 
 
Tom Sloan offered his help and any assistance he could to assist the new officer 
through the Ospreys rugby well established links and networks in both schools and 
the community. 
 
Grace Halfpenny outlined that her and her armed forces covenant officer colleagues 
around Wales are liaising with both Welsh Government and the Welsh Local 
Government Association with an aim to further improve communications between 
those bodies and armed forces community across Wales. The aim is to produce a 
new website and regular newsletter in the near future. 
 
She also detailed that a comprehensive armed forces covenant awareness raising 
programme is being developed which would initially be rolled out to front line council 
staff with a view to expand it to the wider community. 
 
She outlined that following observations made by the Armed Forces Co-ordinators 
across Wales during the pandemic, that the Welsh Government are also ensuring 
that the needs of veterans are being considered in national support for suicide 
prevention and housing support programmes.  . 
 

94 Update from MOD. 
 
CPO Rob Evans (HMS Cambria) reported that due to the most recent lockdown all 
face to face and reservist activities had unfortunately ceased, but indicated that Rob 
Govier and his team are continuing their online outreach and engagement activities 
wherever possible. 
 

95 Swansea Bay University Health Board, Armed Forces Forum. 
 
Chris Morrell reported that the health board had held its first armed forces panel in 
November since the initial lockdown. 
 
She outlined that the health board had held a Remembrance Day online 
commemoration and service for staff. 
 
The early developments relating to the support for bereavement and ‘care after 
death’ programme and centre were detailed, more information will be shared when 
available. 
 

Page 2



Minutes of the Armed Forces Community Covenant Signatories Panel (18.01.2021) 
Cont’d 

 

She detailed that the health board are exploring the issues around the achieving of 
the gold employer status around armed forces and are actively looking to expand 
their links with reservists in their employment and those with military connections.  
 
She outlined that the artificial limb service is currently recruiting staff which should 
improve the service to patients moving forward. 
 
Victoria Williams (Veterans NHS) outlined that the service continues to be very busy 
with 33 referrals in the last 3 months, all referrals are now being dealt with online, 
which has helped speed up the process and aid engagement and take up. 
 
She referred to the staff changes that have recently occurred within the service. 
 

96 Royal Air Force Benevolent Fund. 
 
Neil Tomlin, Area Director, South England & South Wales outlined to the panel the 
background and history to the fund. 
 
He stated that anyone who had served in the royal air force, regardless of length of 
service and their partners and families were eligible for help, advice and assistance. 
 
He outlined that 27m had been spent in 2020, all of which had been raised through 
donations. The number of people helped had risen to seventy one thousand last 
year, up from fifty two thousand the year before. 
 
He outlined the various forms of welfare support, grants and assistance that is 
available to veterans and their families. 
 
He referred to the impact of the pandemic on the service, its fundraising efforts and 
their ability to deliver some of its services. 
 
Various members of the panel outlined that they could link up and support with the 
efforts and work of the fund and indicated that conversations and dialogue would 
continue outside the meeting, particularly around the potential use of cadets, 
reservists and veterans in activities and the expansion of the link to the NHS support 
services. 
 
The funds printed brochure  ‘a guide to our services’ had been circulated with the 
agenda papers. 
 
More detailed information can be found online at https://www.rafbf.org/ 
 

97 Update from Panel Members. 
 
Hafal 
 
Stephen Sullivan outlined that only 1 application from Swansea had been submitted 
during the last tranche of funding applications relating to garrison farm community 
interest company. 
 

Page 3

https://www.rafbf.org/


Minutes of the Armed Forces Community Covenant Signatories Panel (18.01.2021) 
Cont’d 

 

He outlined that Hafal were successful with their application with the ‘force for 
change’ programme which will include an element of digital inclusion for veterans. 
 
Royal British Legion 
 
Phil Flower spoke further to the discussion in the previous item, and outlined that the 
cadet forces in the area who remain very active online currently would always 
welcome the involvement of veterans in their activities. This could prove beneficial to 
all parties going forward.  
 
This could include both involvement online and actual physical attendance in the 
future when lockdown restrictions are eased. 
 
He outlined that 2020 was the 80th anniversary of the Royal Air Force Air Cadets. 
 
He outlined the plans for a series of events, which pandemic restrictions allowing 
would include – schools poster competition, vintage car and motorcycle rally’s, hog 
roast, black tie dinner, sky dives, penalty shoot out at a Swans game & Pen y Fan 
climb. 
 
He also indicated that a virtual parade & church service would take place on 7th 
February and he would circulate details for anyone who wished to take part. 
 
Blesma 
 
Thomas Hall outlined that his organisation continues to operate through the 
pandemic, mostly online, but with actual physical visits to people if necessary. 
 
He outlined issues that had been highlighted to him relating to winter fuel payments 
and that the DWP had been experiencing issues with a new computer system, which 
had resulted in some people being wrongly removed from the list and not receiving 
their payments. 
 
He also referred to an issue a client had been having with Citizens Advice in 
Bridgend. 
 
Pat Dunmore (Citizens Advice) outlined the current working procedures as a result of 
Covid in Swansea/Neath Port Talbot and indicated it should be very similar in 
Bridgend. 
 
  
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 2.55 pm 
 
 

Chair 
 

Page 4



 

SSCE Cymru update – March 2021 

About SSCE Cymru 

The SSCE Cymru mission is to provide the best possible educational support to Service children in Wales. 

This is achieved through the following three areas of the programme mission: 

 Gathering knowledge and evidence 

 Producing resources and coordinating activities 

 Supporting policy and systems. 

Service children in Wales 

Kirsty Williams MS, Minister of Education, has committed to identifying Service children, however currently 

there is no formal mechanism for this data collection process. SSCE Cymru is working with the Welsh 

Government to arrange for a question be added to the Pupil Level Annual School Census (PLASC). 

The RSLOs have been working with all 22 local authorities to conduct a data collection activity, providing a 

snapshot of data as of 1st March 2021. The RSLOs are now working with the LAs to establish how they plan 

to maintain this data in the future. 

  Number of Service children 

LA 
Schools 
with SC 

Definition 
1* 

Definition 
2** 

Total 

Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council 6 13 2 15 

Bridgend County Borough Council 32 64 37 101 

Caerphilly County Borough Council 24 64 50 114 

Cardiff Council 31 59 23 82 

Carmarthenshire County Council 44 77 64 141 

Ceredigion County Council Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown 

Conwy County Borough Council 18 41 35 76 

Denbighshire County Council 25 50 52 102 

Flintshire County Council Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown 

Gwynedd County Council  8 9 11 20 

Isle of Anglesey County Council  8 45 7 52 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council  21 36 30 66 

Monmouthshire County Council Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown 

Neath Port Talbot Council 26 72 Unknown 72 

Newport City Council 24 72 18 90 

Pembrokeshire County Council 20 118 47 165 

Powys County Council 32 224 Unknown 224 

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 50 114 41 155 

Swansea Council  30 53 43 96 

Torfaen County Borough Council 17 25 Unknown 25 

Vale of Glamorgan Council  27 286 Unknown 286 

Wrexham County Borough Council  16 23 17 40 

 462 1433 481 2007 

Plus an additional 85 SC identified in four independent schools. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

Regional School Liaison Officers (RSLOs) for Service children 

Funded by the Armed Forces Covenant Fund Trust, four RSLOs are now in post for the two-year project. 

Focused on supporting schools to understand the needs of Service children and embed activities to ensure 

sustainable support systems.  

Further information about the RSLOs can be found on the SSCE Cymru website, including a map of their 

regions and an overview of the ways they will be working with schools. 

 

Case management 

The mobility of Armed Forces families can have an academic, social and emotional impact on Service 

children. As a result, issues may arise that require support outside of the capacity of the school and/or local 

authority (LA). In these instances, the Regional School Liaison Officers (RSLOs) for Service children in Wales 

will work with the school and LA to identify support that could be accessed to overcome the barrier/s that the 

individual child or small groups of Service children are facing. 

The RSLOs will coordinate intervention/s, monitor the progress and measure the impact, following a 

consistent all-Wales process. They will have access to funding for these interventions when required, which 

was secured as part of the funding bid to the Armed Forces Covenant Fund Trust. 

The case management support from RSLOs is available for schools to access at any point of the year. 

Schools should contact the RSLO for their region to discuss accessing the support. 

 

Month of the Military Child 

 

April is designated as the Month of the Military Child, which highlights the important role Service children play 

in the Armed Forces community. It is a time to applaud Armed Forces families and their children for the daily 

sacrifices they make and the challenges they overcome. SSCE Cymru would like to encourage education 

settings to carry out activities during this month to celebrate and raise awareness of the unique 

experiences this group of children and young people have and become a more Armed Forces-friendly 

environment. Ideas of how schools can get involved are available here. 

 

SSCE Cymru – Service parent/carer survey report 

During September-October 2020, SSCE Cymru conducted a ‘parents/carers of Service children’ survey. 

Giving them the opportunity to share their experiences about living in/moving to Wales, the impact their 

lifestyles have on their children’s education and the support they have received from schools. 

There were 121 full responses, which were used to produce the findings report analysis, available here. 

Page 6

https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/sscecymru/engagingwithsscecymru/default.htm
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/sscecymru/engagingwithsscecymru/default.htm
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/upcomingsscecymruevents/monthofthemilitarychild/default.htm
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/research/sscecymruevidence/default.htm


 

SSCE Cymru resources 

 In 2020, SSCE Cymru launched a suite of new resources aimed at supporting schools, families and 

Service children. Everything is available on the new website www.SSCECymru.co.uk, including: new 

SSCE Cymru School Toolkit, Directory of support, Welsh films and Case studies. 

 A Covid-19 support information page is available on the SSCE Cymru website, which is regularly 

reviewed and updated www.SSCECymru.co.uk/schoolsandlocalauthorities/covid19support 

 Service children – funding guidance for schools in Wales was last updated in August 2020 to now 

include information and advice on the funding available through the MODs Education Support Fund 

(ESF), the Armed Forces Covenant Fund Trust ‘Force for Change programme’ and from the Armed 

Forces Education Trust. 

 Listening to our Service children – we have been running discussion groups with over 100 Service 

children in 14 schools across Wales to gain an understanding of their experiences. The findings report 

is available here. These findings also fed into the SCiP Alliance Listening to Learn: The Voices of 

Service Children report. 

 SSCE Cymru Winter newsletter. 
 

  

Page 7

http://www.sscecymru.co.uk/
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/toolkits/schooltoolkit/default.htm
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/toolkits/schooltoolkit/default.htm
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/resources/directoryofsupport/default.htm
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/servicechildren/learningwelsh/default.htm
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/resources/casestudies/default.htm
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/schoolsandlocalauthorities/covid19support/default.htm
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/schoolsandlocalauthorities/funding/default.htm
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/files/SSCE%20Cymru%20-%20Listening%20to%20our%20Service%20Children%20(2020)%20findings%20(E).pdf
https://www.scipalliance.org/assets/files/Listening-to-learn-FINAL-ONLINE-2020_05_14.pdf
https://www.scipalliance.org/assets/files/Listening-to-learn-FINAL-ONLINE-2020_05_14.pdf
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/resources/sscecymrunewsletters/default.htm


CPD training for schools 

Developed by the RSLOs based on the content of the SSCE Cymru Toolkit, a training package is now 

available for schools and educators in Wales. The RSLOs will be delivering this training in schools during 

visits/virtual meetings, to educate school staff on the experiences of Service child and facilitate discussions 

on actions the school can take to embed good practice. The session can take up to two hours for a group of 

up to 10 participants. 

 

Funding update 

Welsh Government – Supporting Service Children in Education in Wales Fund (2020/21) 

Welsh Government announcement: £250,000 fund to support service children in schools across Wales. 

£200,000 is to be distributed to the local authorities in Wales in March 2021 based on funding plans developed 

with SSCE Cymru. For further information on how the funds will be distributed, visit the SSCE Cymru website. 

The Armed Forces Covenant Fund Trust – Forces for Change Programme 

Awarding grants up to £10,000 (previously £20,000) to projects supporting Armed Forces communities to 

become less isolated and engage more in their local area. Application deadlines for 2021 have not yet been 

set. 

MODs 

There were seven applications from schools in Wales for the MODs Education Support Fund 2021. Five of 

those were successful, securing just over £160,000 in total. The ESF guidance and applications process is 

currently being reviewed to reflect feedback from the regional panels. 

 

Definition of a Service child 

The Welsh Government have recently clarified their definition of a Service child to be: 

A ‘Service child’ has parent(s) – or person(s) with exercising parental responsibility – who is/are Service 

personnel: 

 In HM Regular Armed Forces 

 In full commitment as part of the full-time Reserve service 

 Is a veteran who has been in service within the last two years 

 One of their parents died whilst serving in the Armed Forces and the pupil receives a pension under 

the Armed Forces Compensation Scheme or the War Pensions Scheme. 

SSCE Cymru also encourages schools and education settings to consider identifying and supporting Service 

children that fall outside of this definition by continuing to access and utilise the many resources available on 

the SSCE Cymru website and through the SSCE Cymru Network. 

 

Plans for 2021 

 Produce and launch a SSCE Cymru Service family guide. 

 Produce an E-learning version of the CPD training package. 

 RSLOs school visits/meetings – focused on helping schools to understand the experiences of their 

Service children and embed support. 

 Organise a school conference – led by Service children. 

 Enhance Service children voice in Wales. 

 

For further information, contact: SSCECymru@wlga.gov.uk  

Page 8

https://gov.wales/250000-fund-support-service-children-schools-across-wales
https://www.sscecymru.co.uk/schoolsandlocalauthorities/funding/default.htm
mailto:SSCECymru@wlga.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes.
	4 Supporting Pupils from Service Families. (Yasmin Todd)

